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the notice of violation. If on further re-
view Customs remains of the opinion
that the violation took place as alleged
in the notice of violation, Customs will
issue a written affirmation of the no-
tice of violation advising the person
concerned that the notice requirement
of paragraph (b)(2)(ii)(A) of this section
remains applicable and must be com-
plied with either within the remainder
of the prescribed 30-day period or with-
in 15 days after issuance of the written
affirmation, whichever period s
longer.

(c) Maximum penalty with prior disclo-
sure. If the person concerned has made
a prior disclosure as provided in
§162.74, whether or not such person has
been certified as a participant in the
drawback compliance program under
part 191 of this chapter, the monetary
penalty under section 593A, Tariff Act
of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1593a),
cannot exceed:

(1) For fraudulent violations,
times the loss of revenue; and

(2) For negligent violations, an
amount equal to the interest accruing
on the actual loss of revenue during
the period from the date of overpay-
ment of the claim to the date on which
the person concerned tenders the
amount of the overpayment based on
the prevailing rate of interest under 26
U.S.C. 6621.

[T.D. 00-5, 65 FR 3808, Jan. 25, 2000]
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§162.74 Prior disclosure.

(@) In general—(1) A prior disclosure
is made if the person concerned dis-
closes the circumstances of a violation
(as defined in paragraph (b) of this sec-
tion) of 19 U.S.C. 1592 or 19 U.S.C. 1593a,
either orally or in writing to a Cus-
toms officer before, or without knowl-
edge of, the commencement of a formal
investigation of that violation, and
makes a tender of any actual loss of
duties, taxes and fees or actual loss of
revenue in accordance with paragraph
(c) of this section. A Customs officer
who receives such a tender in connec-
tion with a prior disclosure shall en-
sure that the tender is deposited with
the concerned local Customs entry offi-
cer.

(2) A person shall be accorded the full
benefits of prior disclosure treatment
if that person provides information
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orally or in writing to Customs with
respect to a violation of 19 U.S.C. 1592
or 19 U.S.C. 1593a if the concerned
Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures Offi-
cer is satisfied the information was
provided before, or without knowledge
of, the commencement of a formal in-
vestigation, and the information pro-
vided includes substantially the infor-
mation specified in paragraph (b) of
this section. In the case of an oral dis-
closure, the disclosing party shall con-
firm the oral disclosure by providing a
written record of the information con-
veyed to Customs in the oral disclosure
to the concerned Fines, Penalties, and
Forfeitures Officer within 10 days of
the date of the oral disclosure. The
concerned Fines, Penalties and For-
feiture Officer may, upon request of the
disclosing party which establishes a
showing of good cause, waive the oral
disclosure written confirmation re-
quirement. Failure to provide the writ-
ten confirmation of the oral disclosure
or obtain a waiver of the requirement
may result in denial of the oral prior
disclosure.

(b) Disclosure of the circumstances of a
violation. The term ‘‘discloses the cir-
cumstances of a violation” means the
act of providing to Customs a state-
ment orally or in writing that:

(1) Identifies the class or kind of mer-
chandise involved in the violation;

(2) Identifies the importation or
drawback claim included in the disclo-
sure by entry number, drawback claim
number, or by indicating each con-
cerned Customs port of entry and the
approximate dates of entry or dates of
drawback claims;

(3) Specifies the material false state-
ments, omissions or acts including an
explanation as to how and when they
occurred; and

(4) Sets forth, to the best of the dis-
closing party’s knowledge, the true and
accurate information or data that
should have been provided in the entry
or drawback claim documents, and
states that the disclosing party will
provide any information or data un-
known at the time of disclosure within
30 days of the initial disclosure date.
Extensions of the 30-day period may be
requested by the disclosing party from
the concerned Fines, Penalties, and
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Forfeitures Officer to enable the party
to obtain the information or data.

(c) Tender of actual loss of duties, taxes
and fees or actual loss of revenue. A per-
son who discloses the circumstances of
the violation shall tender any actual
loss of duties, taxes and fees or actual
loss of revenue. The disclosing party
may choose to make the tender either
at the time of the claimed prior disclo-
sure, or within 30 days after CBP noti-
fies the person in writing of CBP cal-
culation of the actual loss of duties,
taxes and fees or actual loss of revenue.
The Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures
Officer may extend the 30-day period if
there is good cause to do so. The dis-
closing party may request that the
basis for determining CBP asserted ac-
tual loss of duties, taxes or fees be re-
viewed by Headquarters, provided that
the actual loss of duties, taxes or fees
determined by CBP exceeds $100,000 and
is deposited with CBP, more than 1
year remains under the statute of limi-
tations involving the shipments cov-
ered by the claimed disclosure, and the
disclosing party has complied with all
other prior disclosure regulatory provi-
sions. A grant of review is within the
discretion of CBP Headquarters in con-
sultation with the appropriate field of-
fice, and such Headquarters review
shall be limited to determining issues
of correct tariff classification, correct
rate of duty, elements of dutiable
value, and correct application of any
special rules (GSP, CBI, HTS 9802, etc.).
The concerned Fines, Penalties, and
Forfeitures Officer shall forward appro-
priate review requests to the Chief,

Penalties Branch, Office of Inter-
national Trade. After Headquarters
renders its decision, the concerned

Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures Offi-
cer will be notified and the concerned
CBP port will recalculate the loss, if
necessary, and notify the disclosing
party of any actual loss of duties, taxes
or fees increases. Any increases must
be deposited within 30 days, unless the
local CBP office authorizes a longer pe-
riod. Any reductions of the CBP cal-
culated actual loss of duties, or and
fees shall be refunded to the disclosing
party. Such Headquarters review deci-
sions are final and not subject to ap-
peal. Further, disclosing parties re-
questing and obtaining such a review
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waive their right to contest either ad-
ministratively or judicially the actual
loss of duties, taxes and fees or actual
loss of revenue finally calculated by
CBP under this procedure. Failure to
tender the actual loss of duties, taxes
and fees or actual loss of revenue fi-
nally calculated by CBP shall result in
denial of the prior disclosure.

(d) Effective time and date of prior dis-
closure—(1) If the documents that pro-
vide the disclosing information are
sent by registered or certified mail, re-
turn-receipt requested, and are re-
ceived by Customs, the disclosure shall
be deemed to have been made at the
time of mailing.

(2) If the documents are sent by other
methods, including in-person delivery,
the disclosure shall be deemed to have
been made at the time of receipt by
Customs. If the documents are deliv-
ered in person, the person delivering
the documents will, upon request, be
furnished a receipt from Customs stat-
ing the time and date of receipt.

(3) The provision of information that
is not in writing but that qualifies for
prior disclosure treatment pursuant to
paragraph (a)(2) of this section shall be
deemed to have occurred at the time
that Customs was provided with infor-
mation that substantially complies
with the requirements set forth in
paragraph (b) of this section.

(e) Addressing and filing prior disclo-
sure—(1) A written prior disclosure
should be addressed to the Commis-
sioner of Customs, have conspicuously
printed on the face of the envelope the
words ‘‘prior disclosure,” and be pre-
sented to a Customs officer at the Cus-
toms port of entry of the disclosed vio-
lation.

(2) In the case of a prior disclosure
involving violations at multiple ports
of entry, the disclosing party may oral-
ly disclose or provide copies of the dis-
closure to all concerned Fines, Pen-
alties, and Forfeitures Officers. In ac-
cordance with internal Customs proce-
dures, the officers will then seek con-
solidation of the disposition and han-
dling of the disclosure. In the event
that the claimed ‘“‘multi-port’ disclo-
sure is made to a Customs officer other
than the concerned Fines, Penalties,
and Forfeitures Officer, the disclosing
party must identify all ports involved
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to enable the concerned Customs offi-
cer to refer the disclosure to the con-
cerned Fines, Penalties, and Forfeit-
ures Officer for consolidation of the
proceedings.

(f) Verification of disclosure. Upon re-
ceipt of a prior disclosure, the Customs
officer shall notify Customs Office of
Investigations of the disclosure. In the
event the claimed prior disclosure is
made to a Customs officer other than
the concerned Fines, Penalties, and
Forfeitures Officer, it is incumbent
upon the Customs officer to provide a
copy of the disclosure to the concerned
Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures Offi-
cer. The disclosing party may request,
in the oral or written prior disclosure,
that the concerned Fines, Penalties,
and Forfeitures Officer request that
the Office of Investigations withhold
the initiation of disclosure verification
proceedings until after the party has
provided the information or data with-
in the time limits specified in para-
graph (b)(4) of this section. It is within
the discretion of the concerned Fines,
Penalties and Forfeitures Officer to
grant or deny such requests.

(g) Commencement of a formal inves-
tigation. A formal investigation of a
violation is considered to be com-
menced with regard to the disclosing
party on the date recorded in writing
by the Customs Service as the date on
which facts and circumstances were
discovered or information was received
that caused the Customs Service to be-
lieve that a possibility of a violation
existed. In the event that a party af-
firmatively asserts a prior disclosure
(i.e., identified or labeled as a prior dis-
closure) and is denied prior disclosure
treatment on the basis that Customs
had commenced a formal investigation
of the disclosed violation, and Customs
initiates a penalty action against the
disclosing party involving the disclosed
violation, a copy of a “‘writing”’ evi-
dencing the commencement of a formal
investigation of the disclosed violation
shall be attached to any required
prepenalty notice issued to the dis-
closing party pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1592
or 19 U.S.C. 1593a.

(h) Scope of the disclosure and expan-
sion of a formal investigation. A formal
investigation is deemed to have com-
menced as to additional violations not
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included or specified by the disclosing
party in the party’s original prior dis-
closure on the date recorded in writing
by the Customs Service as the date on
which facts and circumstances were
discovered or information was received
that caused the Customs Service to be-
lieve that a possibility of such addi-
tional violations existed. Additional
violations not disclosed or covered
within the scope of the party’s prior
disclosure that are discovered by Cus-
toms as a result of an investigation
and/or verification of the prior disclo-
sure shall not be entitled to treatment
under the prior disclosure provisions.

(1) Knowledge of the commencement of a
formal investigation—(1) A disclosing
party who claims lack of knowledge of
the commencement of a formal inves-
tigation has the burden to prove that
lack of knowledge. A person shall be
presumed to have had knowledge of the
commencement of a formal investiga-
tion of a violation if before the claimed
prior disclosure of the violation a for-
mal investigation has been commenced
and:

(i) Customs, having reasonable cause
to believe that there has been a viola-
tion of 19 U.S.C. 1592 or 19 U.S.C. 1593a,
so informed the person of the type of or
circumstances of the disclosed viola-
tion; or

(ii) A Customs Special Agent, having
properly identified himself or herself
and the nature of his or her inquiry,
had, either orally or in writing, made
an inquiry of the person concerning the
type of or circumstances of the dis-
closed violation; or

(iii) A Customs Special Agent, having
properly identified himself or herself
and the nature of his or her inquiry, re-
quested specific books and/or records of
the person relating to the disclosed
violation; or

(iv) Customs issues a prepenalty or
penalty notice to the disclosing party
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1592 or 19 U.S.C.
1593a relating to the type of or cir-
cumstances of the disclosed violation;
or

(v) The merchandise that is the sub-
ject of the disclosure was seized; or

(vi) In the case of violations involv-
ing merchandise accompanying persons
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entering the United States or commer-
cial merchandise inspected in connec-
tion with entry, the person has re-
ceived oral or written notification of
Customs finding of a violation.

(2) The presumption of knowledge
may be rebutted by evidence that, not-
withstanding the foregoing notice, in-
quiry or request, the person did not
have knowledge that an investigation
had commenced with respect to the dis-
closed information.

[T.D. 98-49, 63 FR 29131, May 28, 1998; 63 FR
35798, July 1, 1998; T.D. 99-27, 64 FR 13676,
Mar. 22, 1999; T.D. 99-64, 64 FR 43267, Aug. 10,
1999; T.D. 00-5, 65 FR 3809, Jan. 25, 2000; T.D.
00-57, 65 FR 53575, Sept. 5, 2000]

§162.75 Seizures limited under section
592, Tariff Act of 1930, as amended.

(@) When authorized. Merchandise
may be seized for violation of section
592, Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19
U.S.C. 1592) only if the port director has
reasonable cause to believe that a per-
son has violated the statute and that

(1) The person is insolvent,

(2) The person is beyond the jurisdic-
tion of the United States,

(3) Seizure otherwise is essential to
protect the revenue, or

(4) Seizure is essential to prevent the
introduction of prohibited or restricted
merchandise into the Customs terri-
tory of the United States.

(b) No seizure if prior disclosure. Under
no circumstances shall merchandise be
seized under the authority of 19 U.S.C.
1592 if there has been a prior disclosure
of the violation. This paragraph does
not limit seizures under the authority
of any other applicable law or regula-
tion.

(c) Seizure notice. If merchandise is
seized, the Fines, Penalties, and For-
feitures Officer shall promptly issue a
written notice of seizure to the person
concerned and to any other person the
facts of record indicate has an interest
in the merchandise. The seizure notice
shall contain the information required
by §162.31 and shall state why the sei-
zure was necessary.

(d) Release of seized merchandise—(1)
To person from whom seized. The Fines,
Penalties, and Forfeitures Officer shall
return seized mechandise to the person
from whom seized upon the deposit of
security, in a form acceptable to the
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Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures Offi-
cer, equal to the maximum penalty
which may be assessed, if the entry of
the merchandise into the commerce of
the United States is not prohibited or
restricted.

(2) To others. The Fines, Penalties,
and Forfeitures Officer may release
seized merchandise to any other person
upon the deposit of adequate security,
in a form acceptable to the Fines, Pen-
alties, and Forfeitures Officer, if the
entry of the merchandise into the com-
merce of the United States is not pro-
hibited or restricted, and if:

(i) The Fines, Penalties, and Forfeit-
ures Officer is satisfied that the person
has a substantial interest in the mer-
chandise, and

(ii) The person submits either an
agreement to hold the United States
and its officers and employees harm-
less, or a release from the owner and/or
the person from whom the merchandise
was seized.

(3) Forfeiture. If neither a petition for
relief is filed in accordance with part
171 of this chapter, nor compliance
made with the decision within the time
provided by law, the Fines, Penalties,
and Forfeitures Officer immediately
shall report the facts and refer the case
to the Department of Justice for the
institution of court proceedings.

[T.D. 72-211, 37 FR 16488, Aug. 15, 1972, as
amended by T.D. 84-18, 49 FR 1679, Jan. 13,
1984; T.D. 85-90, 50 FR 21431, May 24, 1985;
T.D. 86-118, 51 FR 22516, June 20, 1986; T.D.
88-43, 53 FR 28195, July 27, 1988; T.D. 99-27, 64
FR 13676, Mar. 22, 1999]

§162.76 Prepenalty notice for viola-
tions of sections 466 or 584(a)(1),
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended.

(a) When required. If the Fines, Pen-
alties, and Forfeitures Officer has rea-
sonable cause to believe that a viola-
tion of section 466 or 584(a)(l), Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1466,
1584(a)(1)), has occurred and determines
that further proceedings are war-
ranted, he shall issue to the person
concerned a written notice of his in-
tent to issue a penalty claim or a claim
of forfeiture, as appropriate.

(b) Contents—(1) Facts of violation.
The prepenalty notice shall:

(i) Describe the merchandise, if appli-
cable,
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